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DELEGATION TO THE REPUBLIC OF SERBIA


CONTRACTING AUTHORITY’S CLARIFICATIONS

Belgrade, 28/10/2010
REF 2010/D/6738
CONTRACTING AUTHORITY’S CLARIFICATIONS

“Assistance to the Digital Broadcasting Switchover in Serbia”

Publication ref.: EuropeAid/ 129866/C/SUP/RS
Tender no.: 10SER01/16/21
N.B: Question no. 12 from the CTP TDO 10SER01 16 21 First Round is complemented with the following: 
	No
	Question
	Answer

	12.
	Tender Documents / Technical Specifications LOT 1

Can you tell us how many channels should be supported by requested equipment? In section 1.4 (Page 14), you requested: ‘’Encoder should be modular supporting multiple MPEG4 SD and HD channels with license purchased based per channel."

But there is no information about number of the channels/licenses that should be provided in initial offer?
	The encoder shall have at least two channels. Only one license per encoder shall be offered.


	No
	Question
	Answer

	1
	Ref: Tender Documents / Technical Specifications LOT 4 & Instructions to tenderers

According with Technical Specifications LOT 4, on page 4 / Table 2: Location data – we believe that the coordinates for Baina Basta and Kladovo are wrong. Please specify if the coordinates for these 2 sites are correct or not.
	As per corrigendum, correct coordinates for Baina Basta are:

LON: 0192636 LAT: 435632  ASL: 1124m

Coordinates for Kladovo are correct. 

	2
	Ref: Tender Documents / Technical Specifications LOT 4 & Instructions to tenderers

According with Technical Specifications LOT 4, on page 14 / 1.2 Link calculations/ 1.2.1 Frequency bands – RF Channels: there is an inconsistency, especially in 8 GHz band, between the specified range (7725 – 8275 MHz) and ECC/REC/(02)06 recommendation (range 7.9 – 8.5 GHz). Please specify the precise frequency channels that are available in both frequency bands (especially in 8 GHz).
	As per corrigendum, frequency bands are: 

a) 3800 – 4200 MHz according to ITU-R F.382-7 (3800-4200 MHz) 

b) 7725 – 8275 MHz according to ITU-R.386-6 Annex 1 .

	3
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III

Can you please explain HE topology.

In Beograd there is one “main” HE (Head End) and two regional HE in Jastrebac and Crveni Čot. 

a) Is HE in Beograd producing one TS (Transport Stream) or more? 

b) We assume that TS from Beograd is distributed across entire country and also to two regional HE. What happens with TS from Beograd in two regional HE? Are regional HE producing their own independent TS or local channels encoded in regional he are added into TS from Beograd? Are maybe some services taken out of the Beograd TS and replaced with local services?

c) If TS is changed in regional HE are there any scheduled tasks required like: one channel from Beograd is replaced with local news channel when it is on-line?

d) Are regional HE creating their own TS and are these TS then send to Beograd where they are put into one unique TS which is then broadcasted through out the country?

e) Is the same management network available on all HE locations?
	a) HE in Beograd is producing two TS. The first one is distributed to all allotments containing only national programs. The second one is containing national programs and regional programs which are to be transmitted only in allotment no. 1. 

b) See answer under a). Regional HE is producing their own independent TS which is added into TS containing national programs from HE Beograd. Some services can be taken out of Beograd TS and replaced with local/regional services. As a result of the above content processing we in fact end up with 3 (three) distinct multiplexes/TSs for transmission purposes:

1. The Beograd TS containing national and regional programs intended for transmission in allotment no.1

2. The Jastrebac TS containing national programs received from the NHE in Beograd on the TS intended for content distribution to the RHEs (different than the Beograd TS), plus regionally added content relevant for the allotments covered by Jastrebac RHE.

3. The Crveni Cot TS containing national programs received from the NHE in Beograd on the TS intended for content distribution to the RHEs (different than the Beograd TS), plus regionally added content relevant for the allotments covered by Crveni Cot RHE.

c) Yes, with automatic time schedule.

d) No.

e) Management of the complete network is being performed from the surveillance centre located at HE Beograd.



	4
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Your request is that encoder must support redundant 2+2 IP output 100/1000 Base-T.

Can you please explain in more detail this request?
	For each encoder multichannel functionality is required. Therefore each encoded service (at least 2) shall go out on main and spare physical ethernet connectors with possibility to use different pairs of IP outputs for different services.

	5
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
T-2 gateway

Your request is that mechanism for 1+1 redundancy should be explained in details.

Can you please explain if seamless switching is needed?
	 Seamless switching is required.

	6
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Can you please explain if number of 20 encoders in HE means active encoders or active + backup encoders? If we have modular chassis is it acceptable to offer for instance 20 active encoders in 5 chassis and one chassis with 4 encoders for backup?
	Encoders will be placed at the playouts (broadcasters’ premises) in the configuration of 1+1 for which chassis shall be provided.

	7
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Can you explain how many TS (Transport Streams) are requested?
	 See answer under 3.

	8
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Can you provide DVB-T2 transponder specification like: modulation, FEC, guard interval, available bit-rate?
	Exact modulation parameters should be provided through the RF planning project and will affect only total available bit-rate per multiplex. This does not affect the technical architecture proposed in any way.

	9
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Technical architecture: Looking at the picture below architecture is not clear (we have taken into consideration that picture is informative).

National HE Beograd:

a) Are encoders located in the national HE i.e. where MUXes in the same server room, or encoders are on remote locations?

b) If encoders are on remote location can you please provide network parameters like: round trip delay time, jitter, is management network stretched to all remote locations, do you have main and backup IP link?

c) Regional HE Jastrebac – Crveni Čot

a) Please describe encoder location as per “National HE Beograd”.
	b) Encoders are located on remote locations.
c) IP network parameters are not relevant here. There is no statmux functionality requested. Management system (network) is stretched to all remote locations through network infrastructure. Main and backup IP link will be provided case by case.

d) Encoders are located on remote locations.

	10
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
a) Encoder redundancy In Table 1 (Table with locations where the equipment shall be delivered) is specified that 20 encoders are needed in Beograd and 10 encoders in regional HE’s. Under item 1.4 encoder redundancy 1+1 is requested. If all encoders are in the main Head End (all encoders are in the same server room) are you requesting 10+10 encoders? 

b) In tender specification no SDI router is requested which is needed for automatic redundancy switching on encoders to provide proper input signal to backup encoder. Should SDI switches be provided in order to provide redundancy switching?

c) Will you provide 10+10 input sources i.e. two identical sources for main and backup encoder? 

d) If encoders are on remote locations can we understand that there are 10 remote locations and that 1+1 encoders are needed per location?

e)  If yes, will there be more identical sources or again SDI switches are needed in order to provide input signals to both encoders. Can we assume that all remote locations are providing only one service? 

f) If not, please provide a list of remote locations and number of services per remote location
	a) Total number of requested encoders is 40 in configuration as defined in answer under question number 6. 

b) As specified under c) in this question, identical sources will be provided for both main and backup encoders. In an 1+1 redundancy setup SDI router is not necessary.

c) Yes

d) Yes

e) See answer under b). It can be assumed that some remote locations are providing more than one service, however the proposed solution shall be service based (1+1 encoder per each service).

f) see answer under e)

	11
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Multiplexing 

Please describe how re-muxing is expected in regional HE’s. Is main HE in Beograd producing one TS which is then available throughout the country and also in regional HE’s? What happens with national TS in regional HE? Are channels replaced by locally encoded channels?
	 See answer under 3.

	12
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
a) How many transport streams come out of the National Head-End Prostream? 

b) Of the Regional Head-Ends? 

c) What are their forecast bitrate?
	 Comment:

a) NHE produces 2 (two) transport streams:

a. First TS intended for transmission in allotment no.1

b. Second TS intended for national content contribution to the RHEs

b) Each RHE produces 1 (one) transport stream intended for transmission.

c) See answer under 8

	13
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III

How will be integrated the programs coming from National HE into Regional HE lineup? (Separated Transport Streams? National channels replaced by Regional channels? Program splicing?)
	See answer under 3.

	14
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Figure 1 (Network Design) and Table 1 (Equipment location) give contradictory information regarding the locations for the HEADENDS and the ENCODERS. Please clarify, if the Encoders and the HEADEND sharing the same location and therefore could e.g. share a common rack.
	See answers under 9 a).

	15
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
In case the encoders are on different location than the rest of the HEADENDs, please clarify the individual numbers of ENCODERS per location that e.g. can share the same rack.
	See answers under 10 d) and e).

	16
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Is FEC necessary between the encoders and the multiplexer?
	Yes. 

	17
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III

Interfaces:

What is the purpose of encoders ASI output?
	 To keep additional flexibility.

	18
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Encoder must support 1+1 Encoder redundant configuration:

a) Are the Encoders all in 1+1 which means that 20 * 1+1 Encoders to be implemented?

b) What is the prefered redundancy config for the Encoders (1+1 or n+1)?

c) Please clarify if one HW encoder means 1 channel?

d) How many of the Encoders are SD and how many are HD?

e) How many audio pairs are there per channel and what is the prefered codec for audio encoding?

f) How would the encoders be feeded from the studio?

g) How are the redundacy of the Encoder feeds are implemented?

h) Please specify if there is a network access to the encoders for remote management.
	a) see answer under 10 a)

b) 1+1

c) Encoder should be modular supporting multiple (at least two) MPEG4 SD and HD channels with license purchased based per channel. Only one license per encoder shall be offered.

d) See answer under c)

e) One audio pair per channel. The supported formats for audio encoding are specified in the Technical Specification, LOT 1, Item 1.3. 

f) All encoders are fed with SDI video inputs SD or HD

g) See answer under 10 b)

h) Yes



	19
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Encoders and Multiplexers must support redundant “2+2 IP output:

How many IP-outputs are required per HW encoder
	See answer under 4.

	20
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Multiplexer must support extensive transport stream and program-level analysis:

What functionality is exactly required here? (Is it ETR290 analysis?)
	 Yes, ETR 290.

	21
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Multiplexer must support 10 ASI interface, each port configurable as input or output:

According to the network design picture, all interfaces to/from the T2 re-multiplexers are IP based! Please confirm if 10 ASI interfaces are really required.
	ASI Interfaces are required because of additional flexibility (DVB-T2 monitoring, software downloads for STBs, support for ASI based receivers, SI spooling, etc.).

	22
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Multiplexer to support ASI interface Input Rate Limiting:

Please clarify what the exact function of this requirement shall be.
	Rate Limiting functionality should be available on all input interfaces. If input rate si higher than defined, the multiplexer shall limit it to the defined value and has to assure that other services are not effected.

	23
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Multiplexer must support 2+2 IP Gigabit outputs:

How many IP-outputs are required per HW Multiplexer?
	As specified in RfP, the multiplexer must have 2 main and 2 backup GbE IP interfaces, supporting port backup, thus 2+2

	24
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
The numbering 2.3 is missing! Is there an additional requirement or just a typo?
	 Yes, this is a typing error. 

	25
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Ten Gigabit Ethernet Interface:

Given the fact that capacity for the forwarding plane is only 2.5Gb, please confirm that the 10Gb interface is required.
	 Yes support for 10Gbps interfaces is required.

	26
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
IP/ASI Adapter Quantity 24:

Are the adapter for Phase 1 of the transmitters? If yes, there are 10* dual drive = 20 x IP/ASI-Adapter + 5* single drive = 5 IP/ASI-Adapter = total 25 IP/ASI Adapter (not 24!). Is 25 the right # of ASI -Adapters to be quoted?
	Yes, 24 IP/ASI adapters are to be quoted.

	27
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Compliance:

What is the purpose of having the IP/ASI adapter bi-directional?
	The bidirectional mode of operation is required because of network configuration flexibility using the same unit for distribution (DVB-T) and contribution purposes.

	28
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 4, Annex II+III
2 Mbit/s E1 Interfaces:

Please provide more details regarding redundancy on E1 interfaces as well as the general requirement for "redundant connectivity of the signals for the 2+0 configuration"
	E1 interfaces shall be provided without redundant connectivity.

	29
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 5, Annex II+III
Could you please provide us additional information for the Lot 5 - UHF antenna system and combiner? 

To be able to give an offer for this project in Serbia we would need the following information:

a) Filter mask requirements.

b) The Analogue frequencies going into the Wideband input.

c) Mounting on wall? Please give some information on what the combiner room looks like to be able to offer a good solution for this.

d) Is it possible to offer only combiners/filters and not together with or as a part of the antenna system or the transmitter?

e) output ANTout: EIA 3 1/8''. Does this mean it’s antenna feeder connection?

f) Do you need interconnection kit between combiner output and antenna feeder?

g) If so, do you have a roughly estimated length of this?
	a) Filter shall comply with Critical mask filter requirements. 

b)  Channels: 59, 64, 54, 68
c) The room is standard with sufficient space for installation of combiner.
d) The tenderer shall offer all Items as specified under lot 5.
e) Yes

f) No

g) No

	30
	In the ANNEX I: GENERAL CONDITIONS, Article 42 - Administrative and financial penalties, paragraph 42.2. (file 5 annexigc.pdf) is stated:

„If the Contractor is found to have seriously failed to meet its contractual obligations, it shall incur financial penalties representing 2-10% of the total value of the contract in question. That rate may be increased to 4-20% in the event of a repeat offence within five years of the first infringement. “
· Please explain the statement “Contractor seriously failed to meet its contractual obligations”. What are exactly the situations on which this paragraph is referring?

· Is the liability for indirect damage (consequential financial losses) referring to loss of property caused by the damage occurred, in particular damage due to delay, loss of profit, loss of use, loss of production, excluded from Contractor obligations?

· If the liability for indirect damages is not excluded from Contractor obligations, are the financial penalties limited to values stated above in paragraph 42. 2?
	It is not possible to list all possible cases of breach of contract. 
Financial penalties are limited to values stated above in paragraph 42. 2.

	31
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 5, Annex II+III
Item 0.5: Product range: ‘’ All the offered equipment under each particular Item, with full requested functionality, must be part of the Manufacturer’s product/service line (except connectors and tools), what has to be proven with the official documentation, published before the date of the tender publishing. The proving documents must be accessible to the Contracting Authority.’’

Please be so kind to precise what should be considered under term official documentation? Manufacturers catalogues, or something else?
	 Manufacturers catalogues.

	32
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 5, Annex II+III
Item 2: ‘’Antenna system elements summarized quantity: 

Set for the antenna grounding:
12 sets Installation material

12 sets

Since tender documentation does not provide any description of antenna system composition (assembly), but only antenna system material, it is not clear what is content of required sets.

Please be so kind to provide us following information.

a) What is exact content of Antenna grounding set (type of grounding, size and quantity)?

b) What is exact content of Installation material set (type of material, size and quantity)?
	a) Grounding kit for:

· cable size 1 5/8"  - 3pcs/set (36 pcs in total)

· cable size 7/8"   - 1pcs/set (12 pcs in total)

b) Following installation material is requested:

· Typical holder/hanger for all dividers offered 

· Cable Hangers – L profile for:


- 1 5/8"  - 10 pcs/set (120 pcs in total)


- 7/8"   - 4 pcs/set (48 pcs in total)

	33
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 5, Annex II+III
Item 4: Tools for the cable and connector assembling up to 7/8"; Quantity: 2 pcs

Tools for the cable processing and flange assembling from 7/8" to 6"; Quantity: 2 pcs

a) By the first pair of tools, please be so kind to clear us following: is it necessary to quote 2 sets of tools, for any type of cable, up to size 7/8”? It is possible that only one tool not to be enough for all cables up to 7/8”.

b) If yes, please be so kind to provide the list of cable sizes and types to be covered. The standard cables up to 7/8”can be

· foam dielectric, LCF 1/2”and LCF 7/8”;

· air dielectric, HF 3/8”, HF 5/8”, HF 7/8”

And some of these dimensions, like HF 3/8 and HF 5/8 are not very often used and the appropriate tools for them are quite expensive.

c) By the second pair of tools, please be so kind to clear us the following: is it necessary to quote 2 pieces of tools, for any type of cable, in range of size from 7/8” to 6”, or 2 sets?

d) If yes, please be so kind to provide list of cable sizes and types to be covered. Similar story like question under b: cable sizes like HF 1 1/8” and HF 2 1/4” are not very often used and have quite expensive flanging tools.
	a) YES, the same tool is for all sizes up to 7/8" (1/2" and 7/8"). Two of these sets shall be offered.

b) For foam dielectric 1/2" and 7/8".

c) YES, the same tool is for all sizes from 1 5/8" up to 6" (1 5/8", 3 1/8", 4 1/8", 5" and 6 1/8" ). Two of these sets shall be offered.

d) For air dielectric 1 5/8", 3 1/8", 4 1/8", 5" and 6 1/8"

	34
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 5, Annex II+III
Item 1.1: General requirements: ‘’… including but not limited to connector inners and screws for the connection, installation material and set for grounding.’’

Question:

Does above listed request need to be understood that all 208 pieces (in total) connectors/flanges need to be delivered with appropriate inner and mounting kit (bolt/nut/gasket set)?
	 Yes.

	35
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 5, Annex II+III
Item 0.2: ‘’Additional material: Equipment delivery must include needed material to guarantee installation of equipment which includes set for grounding.’’

Question: 

Since tender documentation does not provide any description of antenna system composition (assembly), but only antenna system material, it is not clear what type of installation material is necessary. 

Due to the fact that antenna, as generic item, can be deployed in various configurations (single pole-mount, 2-8 antennas array…) there is variety of different mounting hardware types.

Please be so kind to confirm/explain, what type of antenna clamp are required.
	 See answer under 32.

	36
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 5, Annex II+III
Is it necessary to offer additional material for Installation procedure (cable lifting/pooling)? If so, please specify the desired quantities or any other specifications to help us clearly identify the requested materials.
	For additional material see answer under 32. 

	37
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Item 5, Annex II+III
Does any requirement in section 5.4 through 5.10 must be supported both in software and in offered hardware, or it must be supported only in software, but only hardware platform must be able to support these features in future?
	Requirements must be supported in both offered software and hardware.

	38
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Item 5, Annex II+III
In section 5.9 Security 1. Platform must provide tools to protect the network infrastructure against DoS attacks. 

Does this requirement must be fulfilled with offered hardware or just platform must be able to support additional modules to support this feature?
	Requirements for DoS protection are related to protection of control plane and must be supported in hardware.

	39
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Item 5, Annex II+III
In section 5.4 3.Ethernet - Local VLAN significance (decoupling of VLAN tags for service identification and traffic bridging.

Does this requirement must be fulfilled with offered hardware modules or just platform must be able to support this feature only in offered software, and also be able to support this feature in hardware with additional future hardware upgrades?
	Yes, offered platform must include hardware which supports these requirements.

	40
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Item 5, Annex II+III
Does requirements regarding section 5.1 (General platform features) must be fulfilled with offered hardware specification or platform must have only hardware and software support for additional modules mentioned in this section?
	General platform features must be supported by offered platform hardware and software. All necessary modules, which must be offered, are listed in section 5.3. Required hardware specification.

	41
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Item 5, Annex II+III
Platform must support local switching of traffic in hardware:

Does this requirement must be supported with local line cards, or just platform must be able to support line cards with this feature?
	Offered platform must be able to support line cards with this functionality.

	42
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Item 5, Annex II+III
Platform must support service modules for firewalling and IPSec tunnels: 

Does this module must be included in offered specification or platform must be able to support future upgrades with this particular service module type?
	Offered platform hardware must support service modules for firewalling and IPSec tunnels but these modules should not be offered in this phase of project.

	43
	One technical question; we send you a two sets of request for clarification.

Question is: answer(s) will be sent to us by e-mail and published on your web-site; or will be published on web-site, only?
	The answers to your request for clarifications will only be published as per article 13 of the Instructions to tenderers. 

	44
	In the tender EuropeAid/129866/C/SUP/RS 10SER01/16/21 Assistance to the Digital Broadcasting Switchover in Serbia there are demands for the Technical Capacity:

The Tenderer has, during the last 36 months before the date of the deadline for submission of tenders, completed at least 1 project/contract within the area of and within EU, involving delivery, installation and maintenance of broadcasting equipment being tendered by the Tenderer or a consortium.

Question: Is this demand mandatory. If it is mandatory demand then this is discrimination criteria for the Serbian and surrounding countries company (Bosnia and Herzegovina, Montenegro, Macedonia ) who hadn't chance to get experience or participate DVB-T or DVB-T2 in domestic country. With this demand as mandatory we only have opportunity to be subcontractor even we can offer equipment and services according yours demands. We think that this should be support from European Union in equipment but also chance for the local company to get at least experience in the DVB-T or DVB-T2.

Also there are tender in the Montenegro for the same equipment financed also by European union

(http://www.delmne.ec.europa.eu/code/navigate.php?Id=85 ) and they didn't put this as mandatory demand even they put all equipment in one lot what makes tender much more complex in total.

Could you please once more revised is this demand necessary to be mandatory demands on this tender or not.
	Please check article 16 of the Procurement notice which  reads:

The Tenderer has, during the last 36 months before the date of the deadline for submission of tenders, completed at least 1 project/contract within the area of DVB-T or DVB-T2 within the IPA eligible countries, involving delivery, installation and maintenance of broadcasting equipment.

IPA eligible countries are not only the EU member States.

	45
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 2, Annex II+III
Item no. 1.2.1.1:

“When the failure disappears the transmitter must, after an adjustable hysteresis (min. 10 min). Switch back to input A” means that Transmitter will again be off-air during switching-time. Modern transmitters avoid to switch-back, unless a new problem occurs, in order to prevent Set Top Box , to unlock i.e. a much longer time (DVB-T2 Set Top Box processing time is long) than transmitter internal switching. This is why we kindly ask/recommend to agree with following Supplier commitment: “When the failure disappears the transmitter must switch back to input A in case a new failure occurs on input B”
	The functionality as described in the Item no. 1.2.1.1 is mandatory. Nevertheless, it is profitable if both settings are possible, the one which is mandatory and the one proposed under this question.

	46
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 2, Annex II+III
Item no. 1.2.4.1:

What does require Delegation by “change the non-linear pre-correction”: Automatic or manual solution?
	 Digital precorrection by manual settings.

	47
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 2, Annex II+III
Item no. 2.4.2.3:

Existing gap fillers available on the market and whatever the manufacturer name does not bring 6 μs window correction and at the same time an operation with an echo of 12 dB higher than incoming signal (as required in item 2.4.2.1).

For your record available solutions on the market brings you in the best conditions either 4 μs  for an echo of +5dB or 2 μs for an echo of +15dB at maximum, at the date of the Invitation to tender.

We kindly invite the Delegation to check our statement and revise requirement according to Beneficiary needs and existing solutions at the date of the invitation to tender.
	As per corrigendum, the operation window of the echo canceller shall be at least 4 μs (for an echo of +5dB) or at least 2 μs (for an echo of +12dB) wide. In this window the echo canceller must be able to attenuate all echoes.

	48
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 2, Annex II+III
Item no. 2.4.2.4:

Existing gap fillers available on the market are indeed equipped with Echo Canceller detecting changes in echo level and bringing relevant correction, BUT:

Existing gap fillers available on the market and whatever the manufacturer name does not offer Adaptivity to adapt automatically echo window cancellation positioning according to distance changes of the echo vs. time.

Existing solution, whoever is the manufacturer, at the date of the invitation to tender is an Echo Cancellation window adjustable in Distance by the Operator (without adaptivity).

We kindly invite the Delegation to check our statement and revise requirement according to existing solutions at the date of the invitation to tender.
	As per corrigendum, within the operating window the echo canceller shall attenuate echoes, while the window adjusting in distance shall be done manually.


	49
	We refer to the tender guarantee provided in the tender conditions of above mentioned project. The documentation only refers to a guarantee in the form of a bank guarantee. Our Company would appreciate to substitute said bank guarantee by a certified bank draft (a cheque issued by Société Générale, payable at Societe Générale counters and Delegation of the European Union to the Republic of Serbia as beneficiary). Would such a certified bank draft be acceptable by the Delegation of the European Union to the Republic of Serbia?
	The tender guarantee shall be in the format attached to the tender dossier.

	50
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 2, Annex II+III
Point 1.2.1.1 Input signal. For ASI input do you mean the T2-MI over ASI?
	 Yes.

	51
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 2, Annex II+III
I have seen you require liquid cooled transmitters for output power greater than 1kW rms. It is mandatory? The question rise from the fact that for a 1kW rms transmitter , an air cooled solution seems really better than a liquid cooled solution in terms of costs of the transmitter and of power consumption.
	According to Item 1.6, liquid cooling is mandatory for transmitters with nominal power 1200 W and more.

	52
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 4, Annex II+III
Microwave radiolink general question. Do you confirm that the 2+0 link requested are made by bi-directional radiolink?
	Yes.

	53
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 4, Annex II+III
Microwave radiolink  point 1: it is stated that" the native mapping shall be used" Can you kindly clarify?
	Ethernet packets are mapped directly and not trough PDH or SDH frames.

	54
	General:  Is there a deadline for installation of all the equipments? 
	The deadline for installation is provided in Article 13 of Special Conditions, which provides the complete Programme of implementation of the tasks (timetable).

	55
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 2, Annex II+III
General. Is it mandatory to install the transmitters one by one based on how each transmitter is listed in the tender? Or is it possible to install based on our preference?
	The plan for implementation is provided in Article 13 of Special Conditions, which divides equipment under lot 2 into two phases, each having defined the period for implementation. Moreover, the Contractor is requested to prepare and propose detailed implementation plan taking into consideration timetable under Article 13 after signing the Contract, which shall be accepted and confirmed by the Beneficiary prior to start of deliveries.

	56
	Document "instruction to tenderers" paragraph 11, part 3 point 4. Can we provide some documents supporting legal entity file (such as chamber of commerce certificate) as copy and not as original copies?
	Copies as supporting documents for the legal entity file are accepted. 

	57
	Could you please clarify what countries are covered by the IPA programme considering your request for origin of supplies?
	The eligible countries are the following:
Member States:

Austria, Belgium, Bulgaria, Czech Republic, Cyprus, Denmark, Estonia, Finland, France, Germany, Greece, Hungary, Ireland, Italy, Latvia, Lithuania, Luxembourg, Malta, Netherlands, Poland, Portugal, Romania, Slovakia, Slovenia, Spain, Sweden, United Kingdom.

Beneficiaries of this Regulation:

Croatia, The former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia, Turkey, Albania, Bosnia, Montenegro, Serbia, including Kosovo. 
Beneficiary of the European Neighbourhood and Partnership Instrument:

Algeria, Armenia, Azerbaijan, Belarus, Egypt, Georgia, Israel, Jordan, Lebanon, Libya, Moldova, Morocco, Palestinian Authority of the West Bank and Gaza Strip, Russian Federation, Syria, Tunisia, Ukraine.

Member State of the European Economic Area:

Iceland, Lichtenstein, Norway 


	58
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Figure 1 and Table 1 (pages 3,4):

Router C is labeled in the drawing, but is not listed in Table 1. Please state clearly where routers A and B should be located.
	Routers A and B on the figure 1 are Item Number 5. Router in National and Regional Headend.

Router C on the figure 1 is Item Number 6. Router on Transmitter Sites.

	59
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Table 1 (page 4):

Please specify how many out of the 6 requested routers are main and how many are backup.
	All routers are active, there’s no static separation on main and backup routers.

	60
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Table 1 (page 4):

Please specify how many out of the 48 requested v1 switches are main and how many are backup.
	All switches are active, there’s no static separation on main and backup switches.

	61
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Table 1 (page 4):

Please specify how many out of the 12 requested v2 switches are main and how many are backup
	All switches are active, there’s no static separation on main and backup switches.

	62
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Table 1 (page 4):

Please specify how many out of the 6 requested multiplexers (chassis) are main and how many are backup. Please explain the number of TS each chassis should be able to create and the location of each main/backup device.
	Out of 6 multiplexers 3 (three) are main and 3 (three) are backup.

The number of TSs that each multiplexer chassis must be able to generate is at least 10 TSs.

Multiplexers are setup in a 1+1 main/backup architecture, with each pair located in one of the NHE/RHEs

	63
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Table 1 (page 4):

Please specify how many out of the 6 requested T2 gateways are main and how many are backup.
	Out of 6 T2 gateways, 3 (three) are main and 3 (three) are backup.

	64
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Table 1 (page 4):

Please specify how many out of the 24 requested B routers are main and how many are backup.
	All routers are active, there’s no static separation on main and backup routers.

	65
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Table 1 (page 4):

Please specify how many out of the 24 requested IP to ASI adapters are main and how many are backup.
	Out of 24 IP to ASI adapters, 14 (fourteen) are main and 10 (ten) are backup.

	66
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Table 1 (page 4):

Will all sources and its reception be provided by the customer (e.g. No need to supply IRDs, fiber to SDI converters, receiving antennas or any kind of source generator)?
	Yes. 

	67
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Table 1 (page 4):

Are national and regional headends located on different places than any of the transmitter sites (i.e. There is a need to use microwave links to send the signal from the headends to all transmitting locations)?
	National and regional headends are located as stated in the table 1 of Specification Lot1 (at transmitting locations). 

Each headend (NHE or RHE) covers a group of transmitters belonging to a specific allotment. Distribution of the signal to the transmitters is IP based.

	68
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Table 1 (page 4):

There is a total number of 11 locations listed. Can you please provide a table/drawing showing how each headend (national or regional) distributes the signals to the transmitting sites?
	See answer under 67.

	69
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Item 0.3:

Racks are provided for items 4,6 and 7. Does this include any kind of cabling or installation?
	RfP requests quoting all of the necessary materials and installation in order to assure full functionality of the equipment delivered.

	70
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Item 0.7:

Among the Beneficiary responsibilities it is listed space, power supply and AC. What is the cable distribution method in the headends, false floor or cable trays?
	Cable distribution method can be either of both.

	71
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Item 4:

Why are 2 versions requested? Will both versions be installed?
	Yes, both versions of switches will be instaled. Option with AC power supply will be placed at the playouts (broadcasters premises) and option with DC is planned for transmitter sites.

	72
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Item 5:

Can you explain how the connection from routers A is done towards the national IP backbone (are these routers part of the backbone or are they connected to any other edge router which is part of the national IP backbone)?
	This router is part of the backbone with GE interconnection toward RHE sites and transmitter sites from specific allotment.

	73
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Item 6:

If router B is placed in transmitting locations, why does it appear in Table 1 also in headend locations? Note: this question is related to question 67.
	See answers under 58 and 67.

	74
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Item 8.1: 

Please give some explanations / use cases for the definitions in 8.1 #2 for "serive visualization", "transport network visualization" and "advanced monitoring and troubleshooting".
	These are general platform requirements. 

Offered NMS system must support:

· Service visualization – it must have interface to visualize health and performance of critical services through use of dashboards and views related to the specific service. Examples include list of services and associated devices, topology map of devices providing the service, etc. 

· Transport network visualization – it must have capability of displaying topology graph of the network related to the transport of the service.

· Advanced monitoring and troubleshooting – it must present the operator with events related to the network and multicast faults and provide ability to launch tools or modules for troubleshooting.

	75
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Item 8.1:

Please give some explanations / use cases for the definitions in 8.1 #4b for "MoM module must provide tool for analysis of the service and network problems impact"..
	MoM must have capability for event and data correlation, event enrichment and notification, in order to enable visualization of service related issues.

	76
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Item 8.2:

8.2 #2 Unclear requirement. Please specify what is understood by "event deduplication"
	Platform must support mechanisms for reducing the number of events presented to the operator by implementing the logic or rules to the correlated events.

	77
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Item 8.2:

#5 Unclear requirement. Please specify.
	MoM must be based on database instance optimized for high performance in terms of processing of the received events, faults and alerts. In addition it must provide administrators ability for configuring customized views and filters for events presentation.

	78
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Item 8.2:

#7 Unclear requirement. Please specify.
	Offered NMS system must have capabilities to collect the events from the network devices both trough receiving appropriate messages from sources and polling the devices for collection of data. Collected information must be available to the modules responsible for presenting the event, fault and alerts list to the operator.

	79
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Item 8.4:

#5 Unclear requirement. Please specify.
	Video Transport module must be able to collect and present multicast network topology with routers and interfaces involved in this topology.

	80
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Item 8.4:

#7 Unclear requirement. Please specify.
	System must have capability of monitoring the environments, which have or do not have external video probes installed.

	81
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
At the system launch, 1+1 encoder units are used for each channels. 

Shall the system support  N+1 and N+P redundancy scheme?
	NO. Redundancy encoder architecture will only be 1+1 based on a multi-encoder chassis.

	82
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
StatMux encoders provide 20% to 25% bandwidth saving, lead to the best possible picture quality for a set of encoders sharing a common bandwidth. Statistical multiplexing will also be a great advantage for HD. 

CAPPED VBR only doesn’t allow to share bandwidth among channels of a given multiplex. Statistical multiplexing affords potentially 5, 10, 15 or 20 SD channels in a single multiplex.

In a way to optimize the bandwidth and the video quality, Shall the system support statistical Multiplexing of MPEG-4 SD?
	Statistical multiplexing functionality for the encoders is NOT requested.

	83
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Shall the system support seamless local service replacement in the region (live to live switchover)? 

This would be a requirement to add to the remultiplexer allowing service replacement at any time.
	Content regionalization can be:

a. Static – Regional channels are added permanently to a Regional multiplex, or certain channels are permanently removed from a distribution multiplex and replaced by other channels

b. Dynamic – Regional or Local channels are inserted into a Regional multiplex based on a predefined daily/weekly schedule. In the same manner, National channels are restored back into the Regional multiplex based on a predefined daily/weekly schedule.

	84
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
We recommend a multiplexer supporting also the DVB-T2 gateway feature, because a single box instead of two separates units will optimize the cost and resiliency of the system.

If the proposed MUX supports T2 gateway feature. Could we propose a single box instead of two separates units ?
	No, DVB-T2 re-multiplexer and T2 Gateway have to be separated devices.

	85
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Statistical multiplexing can manage local encoders but also remote encoders (up to 600 ms round trip delay without any degradation in some implementations). 

In the DTTV Serbia example this could lead to save 4 remultiplexer and have in a single statistical multiplexing pool all the 20 video services: more efficient for picture quality, less expensive.

Shall The system support Remote Statistical Multiplexing ?
	Remote Statistical Multiplexing functionality for the encoders is NOT requested.

	86
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Shall the system support (for the future) scrambling capabilities?
	Offered system shall allow scrambling upgradeability for future implementation; however it shall not be offered in this tender.

	87
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
How many multiplex we are supposed to populate at the head end?
	See answers under 3 and 62.

	88
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
How many services will be multiplexed in the national HE (SD/HD)?
	The number of TSs that each multiplexer chassis must be able to generate is at least 10 TSs with possibility to support different combination of SD/HD services.

	89
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
How many services for region 1 and 2?
	See answer under 88.

	90
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
How many MPTS for each region?
	See answers under 3 and 62.

	91
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Are encoders in the head end located in the same premise?
	See answers under 6 and 9.

	92
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
What is the final bit rate expected from each MPTS?
	See answer under 8.

	93
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
What is the purpose of IP to ASI adapters in location Belgrade?
	NHE as well as transmission sites will be positioned at location Belgrade. IP to ASI adapters are to be implemented at the transmission sites.

	94
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
In how many allotments will be installed AP/ASI adapters.
	As per corrigendum, IP to ASI adapters will be installed at each transmission site installed in phase 1.

	95
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Should we take in to account allotments in LOT2? How the signal is going to be distributed to allotments in LOT2 for which there is no IP to ASI adapter mentioned in LOT1?
	Additional IP to ASI adapters will be provided for the allotments not covered by the current RfP in future phase. 

	96
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Does 2+2 in Lot 1 Specifications, Chapter 1.4 means 4 Ethernet ports?
	Yes.

	97
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Router C in the Lot 1 Specification Figure 1 is not specified in the tender documentation. Is this mistake in Figure 1 or it is mistake in the tender specification?
	See answer under 58.

	98
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
If the requested Routers and Switches in the tender are going to be used to build new IP networks and regarding Ancillary services as described in Item no. 0.3 and 0.7 from Technical Specifications LOT1.doc:  Should this services include ip network design and ip services configuration such as for example: routing protocols, mpls, multicast and etc?
	Yes, as a part of  implementation process.

	99
	With reference to point 8 (Eligibility and rules of origin) of the Supply Procurement Notice, we would like to know if “international organizations” stands for international group of companies?
	No. International Organizations are intergovernmental organizations created as a result of International treaties.  

	100
	With reference to Point 6 (Experience) - of the Tender Form for a Supply Contract, we would like to know if in the case that tenderer is part of the international group of companies consisting of many legal entities, it is possible to indicate the relevant supplies projects made by the companies belonging to the same group as the entity participating to the tender?
	Yes, it is. 

	101
	In document Supply Procurement Notice, under 16 Selection Criteria, under 3 Technical capacity of tenderer, it is written: “The Tenderer has, during the last 36 months before the date of the deadline for submission of tenders, completed at least 1 project/contract within the area of DVB-T or DVB-T2 within the IPA eligible countries, involving delivery, installation and maintenance of broadcasting equipment”, while in the document “Evaluation grid” under item 3 Technical Capacity, which is again referring to Supply Procurement Notice, item 16.3, it is written: “The Tenderer has, during the last 36 months before the date of the deadline for submission of tenders, completed at least 1 project/contract within the area of DVB-T or DVB-T2 and within EU, involving delivery, installation and maintenance of broadcasting equipment being tendered by the Tenderer or a consortium”. Please clarify which of these two statements should we consider as valid.
	The correct criterion is the one published in the Procurement notice:
The Tenderer has, during the last 36 months before the date of the deadline for submission of tenders, completed at least 1 project/contract within the area of DVB-T or DVB-T2 within the IPA eligible countries, involving delivery, installation and maintenance of broadcasting equipment.



	102
	Ref: Tender documents, Annex D
Could you please explain and give some examples for the table format EXPERIENCE, especially for the following:

1. PROPORTION SUPPLIED BY LEGAL ENTITIY

2. No OF STAFF PROVIDED

3. ORIGIN OF FUNDING

4. NAME OF MEMBERS

Would it be enough, in order to describe our experience in the last 3 years, to make the list/table which would contain the major relevant clients, their addresses and the amount of relevant products we have sold per year?
	1 the proportion supplied by the legal entity has to be indicated only if your project was implemented in consortium with other partners. 
2 Not relevant.

3. It is necessary to indicate the origin of funding with which your supplies/delivery has been paid. (private/public; name of client)

4 If the project was implemented in consortium with other partners, their names shall be indicated in this section. 

	103
	Ref: Tender documents, Annex D
Could you explain table format FIELDS OF SPECIALISATIONS. Could you please give an example of the relevant specialisms that we should put in row headings?
	The fields of specialization can be taken from article 6 (description of the contract) of the procurement notice.
For example:

Supply, delivery, installation, commissioning and, after-sales service of digital broadcasting terrestrial network equipment

	104
	Ref: Tender documents, Annex D
Regarding the table format for ECONOMIC AND FINANCIAL CAPACITY:

What if we are not obligated to prepare the cash flow in the country where we are registered and we do not have some statistical information required?
	Explain in the table the reason why these financial data are not available and provide your latest estimates.

	105
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 4, Annex II+III
Please check and confirm the coordinates of 2 sites:

• Bajina Basta (seems wrong writing of the coordinates, some values impossible to have as the coordinates)

• Orlovat (mistake in coordinates, according to them the site seems somewhere in Romania)
	See answer number 1 for Bajina Bašta.
As per corrigendum, correct coordinates for Orlovat are:

LON: 0203140 LAT: 451627 ASL: 81m

	106
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1 and Lot 2, Annex II+III
Table 1 (page 2):

According to table, there will be 30 + 4 transmission locations, but according to LOT1 table there are listed only 11. Is the rollout planned in different phases? Please explain.
	As per corrigendum, the implementation will be executed in two phases, according to Table 1 under Lot 2 specification.

	107
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 2, Annex II+III
Table 1 (page 2):

Please provide a list showing the relationship between the created TS and the frequency they use in each transmission location.
	This list will be available in the stage of implementation and is not affecting the technical architecture proposed in any way.

	108
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 2, Annex II+III
Table 1 (page 2):

Can you please confirm that each location consist of one transmitter without redundancy (1+0)?
	Yes. Only Dual Drive and Single Drive configuration is requested according to table 1.

	109
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 2, Annex II+III
Table 1 (page 2):

In LOT1 Figure 1 the allotment X is shown as a SFN region. In LOT 2 there are a total of 15 allotments (1 to 16, but nr 9 is missing). Is each allotment a SFN region? May the output channel be different from one allotment to another?
	Yes, each allotment is SFN region. 

Yes, the output channel will be different from one allotment to another, except in some cases where particular allotments carry the same channels.

	110
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 2, Annex II+III
Table 1 (page 2):

Why allotment 12 is the same as 13 (transmitter location and output channel) but with different power?
	As per corrigendum, allotments 12 and 13 are being regarded as one allotment carrying the same channel.

The coordinates for some of transmitting locations are not correct. Corrected coordinates are provided hereinafter:

Sombor: LON: 0190902 LAT: 454650 

	111
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 2, Annex II+III
Table 1 (page 2):

Why the three transmission locations are the same for allotment 16?
	As per corrigendum, the coordinates for some of transmitting locations are not correct. Corrected coordinates are provided hereinafter:

Zrenjanin: LON: 0202334 LAT: 452240

Sid: LON: 0192318 LAT: 450921

	112
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 2, Annex II+III
Table 1 (page 2):

Why the location for transmission in allotment 7 is the same as in allotment 16 but using a different output channel?
	As per corrigendum, the coordinates for some of transmitting locations are not correct. Corrected coordinates are provided hereinafter:

B. Višnjičevo: LON: 0204045 LAT: 452659

	113
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 2, Annex II+III
Table 1 (page 2):

Are Gucevo and Cer in allotment 15 in the same locations?
	As per corrigendum, the coordinates for some of transmitting locations are not correct. Corrected coordinates are provided hereinafter:

Cer: LON: 0192954 LAT: 443612

	114
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 2, Annex II+III
Table 1 (page 2):

The nominal power of the transmitter is stated BEFORE mask filter? (please note that this is not clear after reading 1.2.4.2 and the definition of the transmitter found on page 13)
	No, the nominal power of the transmitter is effective power of modulated DVB-T2 signal on output of the output/channel filter according to Item 1.2.4.1.

	115
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 2, Annex II+III
Table 1 (page 2):

The table mentions a output filter with critical mask. Should this filter be part of the proposal as part of the transmitter?
	The output/channel filter should be part of the proposal as part of the transmitter.

	116
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 2, Annex II+III
1.1.9 (page 15):

What is the meaning of "destroy"?
	In the contexts of request under the Item 1.1.9, ‘’destroy’’ means: to prevent to adjust transmitter parameters remotely in a way, which could harm or damage the equipment. 

	117
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 2, Annex II+III
1.2.4.1 (page 22):

Is this a requirement for additional power meters to measure the power after the filter (provided that the transmitter measures the output power before filter)?
	The output power shall be measured after the output/channel.

	118
	As a proof of Technical capacity of the tenderer is required : "The Tenderer has, during the last 36 months before the date of the deadline for submission of tenders, completed at least 1 project/contract within the area of DVB-T or DVB-T2 within the IPA eligible countries, involving delivery, installation and maintenance of broadcasting equipment".

Please clarify if completed projects for pilot/experimental DVB-T/DVB-T2 transmissions , involving delivery, installation and maintenance will be considered as valid tenderer's reference?
	We are not in a position to provide an answer without a detailed description of this Pilot/experimental project.  

	119
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 2, Annex II+III
Item 1.6.2: ‘’Air ducting must be used for air intake and outlet.’’ 

This requirement is therefore theoretically applicable for all required air cooled transmitter. However among required transmitters we have 100W low power transmitters for which this is fully useless and very costly vs. Transmitter price. Please clarify whether supplier must also provide a ducted solution for 100W low power transmitters? 
	For transmitters/gap fillers with output power up to100W air ducting is not required.

	120
	Ref: Special Conditions and Technical Specifications Lot 2, Annex II+III

Article 24: 

Our Questions, for LOT 2, are:

From above Article, we understand that the Contractor shall handle “Factory acceptance tests at his own cost” for the time spent by Contractor’s Engineer on each individual equipment, however in case “Contracting Authority and Beneficiary decide to participate at Factory acceptance tests”, please clarify:

a) Who will bear the cost?

· For Air tickets 

· For Accommodation in Suppliers’ Country

· For Taxi, meals and any expenses related to the travel abroad for Contracting Authority and Beneficiary

 b) How many representative of Beneficiary will attend Factory Acceptance tests? (Since directly impacting above listed costs)

c) 34 Equipment must be tested in Factory. Cost to get attendance of Beneficiary’s representative is highly expensive since long in terms of duration in order to perform 34*factory acceptance tests in presence of Beneficiary (while already done without presence of Beneficiary during manufacturing process and again performed during Site Acceptance Tests).

Do you agree that Beneficiary, in case of travel to Supplier’s factory, performs Factory Acceptance Tests (FAT) by sampling that is to say 1 FAT per power type (there are 6 types of power for transmitters)?

Our Recommendation:

In order to minimize project costs and especially to avoid any delay in project implementation we highly recommend that the Contracting Authority and Beneficiary decide to only ask for test reports, even all of them,  to be sent for inspection to an agreed e-mail address.
	a) All costs will be born by the Contracting Authority and/or Beneficiary

b) Not known at this stage but not relevant for the contractor. 
c) The Contracting Authority and Beneficiary have the flexibility to decide either to participate at Factory acceptance tests or ask for test reports to be sent for inspection.


	121
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 2, Annex II+III

Item 0.11: page 11&12/17:

a) We understand overall training duration shall be 5 days, that is to say: 2 days theoretical + 2*1.5days on 2 separate sites close to Belgrade (i.e. total 3 days).

Please confirm or clarify?

b) Cost related to organisation: we understand that Contractor shall take care of documentation and projector. Please let us know:

· Can Contractor perform Theoretical training in Beneficiary premises?  Yes/ No

· Accommodation cost for Beneficiary’s trainees coming from cities located far from Belgrade is directly borne by Beneficiary?  Yes/No 

· Transportation cost to the sites for Beneficiary’s trainees is directly borne or handled by beneficiary?  Yes/No
	a) Confirmed
b) 

· No, the premises for training shall be provided by the contractor.
· Yes

· Yes


	122
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 2, Annex II+III
Item 0.7 page 9 & 10/44:

a) As per Art 0.7 requirement, we understand Beneficiary shall provide Air ducts (“efficient air cooling system/air exhaust system”) and  Air conditioning system whenever required and shall handle any relevant civil works  (e.g. Holes in walls or ceiling)  in relation with Air cooling . Please confirm?

b) As per Art 0.7 requirement, Beneficiary has responsibilities for “Interfaces”. Will beneficiary prepare, as for air cooling, any relevant civil works for Liquid cooling transmitter system. Please clarify?

c) As per Art 0.7 requirement, Beneficiary shall prepare the transmission site. Upon project implementation, shall the Contractor get Drawing under electronic format for each station in order to define proper installation materials delivery?
	a) Yes

b) No

c) The specification of required installation materials is specified under Item 0.3, while the contractor has possibility to visit each station during project implementation.



	123
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 2, Annex II+III
Item 1.6.1 page 28/44:

With operation requirement at -45°C for coolant while in  Article 1.1.3 page 14/44 is stated:

‘’Parts of transmitter that are to be used outside the building and by this exposed to the weather conditions should operate under the following conditions:

· temperature range: -25 °C ÷ 45 °C

· relative humidity: 8 ÷ 95%

meaning weather conditions not reaching -45°C.

Question:  from above articles, Article 1.6.1 page 28/44 should be, as follows:

……………. When the transmitter is not working, coolant must not freeze until the temperature of -45°C  -25°C.

Please confirm or clarify?
	As per corrigendum, coolant must not freeze until the temperature of -35 °C.

	124
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 2, Annex II+III
Today's technology allows design of compact, cost effective and energy efficient transmitters of up to 1.2 kW based on air cooling systems. We consider that, by forcing bidders to include liquid cooling in its 1.2 kW transmitter configuration, the purchase becomes unnecessarily more expensive since the solution based on liquid cooling requires a more complex design while a solution based on air cooling is simpler, cheaper, more compact and more energy efficient. We would like to know whether a 1.2 kW air cooled based solution would be suitable for the tender.
	No. Liquid cooling is mandatory for transmitters with nominal power 1200 W and more.

	125
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 2, Annex II+III
In point 1.2.3.4 of the technical specifications relating to "Behaviour in case of GPS failure", shall we propose a 1+1 GPS redundancy or is it a single GPS external reference required?
	Single GPS is required.

	126
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Should we consider ethernet as physical interface for WAN?
	Yes.

	127
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Is the IP network for transport going to be build now or it is existing network which will be used with/without upgrade?
	Case by case with using existing IP network, upgrading it and building the new one.

	128
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Regarding IP transport networks: Is Beneficially going to provide complete design (including which routing protocols will be used, what kind of multicast and any other technologies and services which should be present in the network) to the Tenderer?
	No, see answer under 98.

	129
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Regarding Ancillary services as described in Item no. 0.7 from Technical Specifications LOT1.doc: Does "commissioning” means - hardware commissioning?
	No. It means commissioning of the complete solution (including HW and SW).

	130
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 2, Annex II+III
Item 0.3; Page 6/43:

Our transmitters for Nominal Power < 500W are fully operational in a stand-alone version. Is it possible to offer low power transmitters without rack?
	All transmitters shall be offered with racks.

	131
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 2, Annex II+III
Item 0.11; Page 11/43: 

Tenderers are required to offer a 5 day training. A two day theoretical part in Belgrade and a three day practical part at two Transmission locations close to Belgrade. What is the total number of training days to be offered? 5 days? 8 days?
	5 days.

	132
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 2, Annex II+III
Item 1.1.5; Page 14/43: 

The whole DVBT-2 transmitter is expected to fit in a standard 19’’ cabinet. However, most manufacturers’ high power liquid cooled transmitters fit in wider racks (up to 26 inches).May tenderers offer wider than 19’’ racks for liquid cooled high power TV transmitters?
	No, it shall be standard 19” rack.

	133
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Item 4.7: Power supply:

The equipment under this Item shall be based on:

• Version 1: 230V AC with EU power cord power supply

• Version 2: -48V DC

Is it possible to offer DC Power Supply support by using external DC/AC adapter?
	Yes



	134
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Item 6.5 QoS capabilities:

Request number 8: Hierarchical queuing (HQ) with 3 levels of hierarchy with 128000 queues. 

Is it possible to offer Hierarchical queuing (HQ) with 3 levels of hierarchy with 64000 queues?
	As per corrigendum, it’s preferable to offer Hierarchical queuing (HQ) with 3 levels of hierarchy with 128000 queues but it’s possible to offer 3 levels of hierarchy with 64000 queues.

	135
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Item 1:

Question: Please clarify, what is total number of channels/licenses that should be provided for the encoder multi channel platform in the initial offer?
	Total number of channels/licenses that should be provided for the encoder multi channel platforms in this offer is 40 (forty) MPEG-4 SD licenses.

	136
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Item 7.4. Redundancy capabilities:

Given the assumption that the ASI redundancy-switching device has 1 (one) secured output as the main feed to the modulator/transmitter device, how many additional outputs should be provided on the ASI redundancy switch and what is their purpose?
	The ASI redundancy switch must have at least two physical ASI outputs, one of which must be secured, thus providing an uninterrupted input signal to the modulator/transmitter device. The additional ASI outputs will be used for monitoring and signal analysis.

	137
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Item 7.4. Redundancy capabilities:

Is the DVB-T2 transmitter going to be operating as part of a DVB-T2 SFN, and in this case is it mandatory that the ASI redundancy switch support seamless switchover between the main and the backup ASI streams, at the same time maintaining the DVB-T2 SFN synchronization?
	Yes.

	138
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Item 7.4. Redundancy capabilities:

Request number 3: Requirement states support for "user selectable detection criteria: Stuffing Rate". As described in Figure.1 Network Design diagram, IP to ASI adapters and ASI Redundancy switches are operating with DVB-T2 MI type of signal. In that case is it necessary that the ASI Redundancy switch supports stuffing rate as a detection criteria?
	Not necessary. It will be sufficient if the ASI redundancy switch is capable of using both TS sync loss and PAT availability as detection criteria.

	139
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Item 7.4. Redundancy capabilities:

Request number 7: How relevant is the "user-selectable switch activation delay period (0-60)" feature in the case of a seamless switchover in a DVB-T2 SFN environment?
	Not relevant. ASI redundancy switch priority must provide seamless switchover and maintain DVB-T2 SFN synchronization.

	140
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Item 7.4. Redundancy capabilities:

Request number 8: In Section 7.4 it is requested that "Reset to normal operation shall be done by the operator remotely." How important is the "user-selectable switch restore delay period (0-60)" feature in this case, is it mandatory and what is the purpose of this delay?
	Not mandatory. ASI redundancy switch priority must provide seamless switchover during main signal restore and at the same maintain DVB-T2 SFN synchronization.

	141
	Ref: Tenderer form for a supply contract

Technical Capacity of Tenderer - due to the similarity of technologies can DVB-S, DVB-C or IPTV projects be accepted as references?
	No. 

	142
	Ref: Tenderer form for a supply contract

If subcontractor fulfill Technical Capacity regarding DVB-T or DVB-T2 technology, involving delivery, installation and maintenance of broadcasting equipment does it mean that consoritum as a whole fullfil the same requirements?
	Selection criteria have to be fulfilled by the tenderer being a single company or a consortium. Subcontractors are not consortium partners/members and therefore their technical capacity is not relevant for the consortium. 

	143
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
In order to satisfy item 0.3 in Technical Specification (Accessories and additional material) can we include in our offer up to 10% of complementary 3rd party equipment?
	All the offered equipment under each particular Item, with full requested functionality, must be part of the one Manufacturer’s product/service line. It is possible to combine different manufacturer products for different product/service item number.

	144
	Please let us know if the same Bidder may submit two bids for different lots, for example one bid as a member of the consortium for Lot X. and another independent bid as alone bidder for Lot Y.
	Yes it is possible. 

	145
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 5, Annex II+III
Technical question for LOT 5: Please clarify if Combiner (LOT 5, item 3) can be 3-pole or 5-pole filter.
	Filter shall comply with Critical mask filter requirements.

	146
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Please clarify if potential bidder should be registered in advance in your office possible bidder or not ? If yes do you have a registration form ?
	All interested bidders satisfying the selection criteria can bid for this tender. There is no prior registration. 

	147
	Please clarify if a company is entitled to participate in this tender as main contractor or partner in a consortium and at the same time simultaneously as subcontractor or equipment vendor of other bidder.
	This is not allowed. It would mean that the same company is involved in several tenders. 

	148
	Please specify if the references of a company can be proven through the subcontracting mode.
	Not known what is meant by the “subcontracting mode”

	149
	In accordance with the tender documents all prices shall be quoted DDP (Incoterms 2000) but on the other hand shall EXCLUDE all duties and taxes (incl. VAT) – hence we understand the term DDP (Delivered Duty Paid) misleading as all relevant duties should be excluded from pricing. Could you please once again confirm that all deliveries imported are exempt from customs duties, VAT, other taxes or duties, which would actually lead to pricing in accordance with DDU although officially stipulated as DDP?
	All deliveries imported are exempt from customs duties, VAT, other taxes or duties.

	150
	Origin:  the RfQ states in 4.1 “Unless otherwise provided in the contract, supplies must originate in a Member State of the European Union or a country covered by the IPA programme. The origin of the goods must be determined according to the Union Customs Code or the international agreements to which the country concerned is a signatory.

As according to the Union Customs Code the origin of goods could be either  the socalled (1) preferential origin or (2) non-preferential origin and the way of determining the origin of goods is different in both options, could you please confirm, which type of origin is meant in the RfQ:

a.      non-preferential origin proved by certificates of origins

b.      preferential origin proved by EUR.1 or EUR.MED certificated

c.      both a. and b. are acceptable.
	Both a. and b. are acceptable.

	151
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Section 1 (MPEG-4 Encoder) - Please confirm that on each VHE site, encoders will all be located at the same place, same rack but still secured by 1+1 redundancy. Can a N+1 or N+2 redundancy scheme be considered?
	Encoders will be located at remote locations in a 1+1 redundant architecture. N+M redundancy is not considered.



	152
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Section 1 (MPEG-4 Encoder) - For 1+1 redundancy, can we assume that it is the responsibility for the content provider to provide 2 SDI signals per service, 1 for each encoder?
	Yes.

	153
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Section 4 (Ethernet switches) - Is it mandatory to offer dual-purpose uplink on Version 2 switch with DC power supply or can we offer platform with 10/100/1000 uplink?
	Dual-purpose uplink on Version 2 switch is mandatory.

	154
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Section 5 (Router in National and Regional Headend) - Is it mandatory to have hierarchical queuing with 3 levels on all linecards or this feature needs to be only on SFP based linecard?
	It is acceptable to have this feature only on SFP based linecards.

	155
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Section 5 (Router in National and Regional Headend) - Is it mandatory to have built-in functionality of in-line video monitoring of MPEG packets or is it enough just to have support for this function?
	It is mandatory that this functionality is included in the offered platform’s hardware, software and licenses.

	156
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 4, Annex II+III
Table 2:

We kindly ask you to specify for each site the zip/postal code and name of the city/locality where the site is located.
	Each site is defined with its coordinates provided in Table 2: Location data. We consider that this information is sufficient for the preparation of proposal. 

	157
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 4, Annex II+III
Item 1.1 General requirements:

It is specified that the radio link to be “all indoor” type with upgradeability for future needs to configurations up to 8+0.

We kindly ask you to specify if the upgrade to up to 8+0 must be possible in the same equipment indoor subrack, without any change of initial equipment configuration (and so minimizing the downtime of traffic) or the future upgrade might be made by change/addition of the indoor subrack.
	Upgradeability to 8+0 means scalability on traffic and RF channel usage. Indoor subrack addition is acceptable. The RF couplers shall be prepared to add additional RF channels. Also the ethernet traffic from all RF channels shall be aggregated to the same line interface.

	158
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 4, Annex II+III
1.10 Backup batteries:

We kindly ask you to confirm that one Battery backup system of 800W, is required to be delivered in each site.
	Yes

	159
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 4, Annex II+III
Item 1.4: 

Given the fact that the sites Backa Tolopa and Orovats are repeater sites with no add/dropp or DVB-T equipment, please specify if we can configure these sites as back to back connection, without providing 8E1 and E/FE/GBE interfaces as required for all other sites?
	No

	160
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Item 7.2: The video adapter must have IP network adapter for receiption of 1 or 2 MPEG transport streams

Please clarify the exact requirement. Does this mean, that the second TS is eg, for a second RF mux and must be output to a different ASI than the first TS since feeding a different modulator?
	Yes. Each of the 2 received MPEG transport streams needs to be output to a different ASI physical output.


	161
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 4, Annex II+III
Item 1.10:

It is not clear how many Battery Backup systems should be offered. Is one per location sufficient? Also please confirm that rectifiers have to be included, because it is not clearly stated.
	See answer under 158. 

Rectifiers shall be included.

	162
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 5, Annex II+III
General: 

Please indicate the number of antenna sites and the configurations of the individual antenna systems (e.g. 2-2-2, 4-4-4-4) to be build.
	The beneficiary will be responsible for configuring the antenna systems after receiving equipment specified in LOT 5. Answers to these questions are not relevant for preparing the proposal.

	163
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 5, Annex II+III
Item 2: Antenna system elements summarized quantities:

a) Please specify the requested content for the "Set for the antenna grounding"

b) Please specify the requested content for the "Set of installation material"
	See answer under 32.

	164
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 5, Annex II+III
Item 4: Tools for the cable processing and flange assembling from 7/8" to 6":

a) Please specify the exact cable diameters the tools are requested for.

b) Please also specify the type of cables per diameter (foam or air-dielectrical)
	See answer under 33.

	165
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 2, Annex II+III
Item 1.2.1:

Shall the transmitter be prepared for MPLP (multi PLP)?
	Yes.

	166
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 2, Annex II+III
Item 1.2.4.1/6:

In case of reduced power shall the efficiency of the transmitter with higher output than 100W keep constant?
	By reducing the power all quality requirements must be fulfilled, which means that the efficiency should be constant as well.

	167
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 2, Annex II+III
Item 1.6.1

Shall the fans of the heat exchanger of the liquid cooling system be speed controlled?

This would optimize the system with regards to efficiency.
	Proposed functionality would be beneficial but it is not mandatory.

	168
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 2, Annex II+III
Item 1.6.2

Would it be helpful that the redundant fans in the air-cooled transmitter can be replaced during operation?
	Proposed functionality would be beneficial but it is not mandatory.

	169
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 2, Annex II+III
Item 2 Gapfiller:

a) Would it be helpful if the gapfiller are designed in on 19" unit box?

b) Would it be helpful to have typ. main echo suppression of 35 dB?
	Gap fillers shall fulfill the specification under Item 2

	170
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
With minimum 44 10/100/1000 ports and 40Gbps switching fabric interface (as required) there is possibility of congestion. Is it acceptable to offer 40 10/100/1000 ports instead of 44 ports? If minimum 44 10/100/1000 ports is must, can you provide us technical rational behind this requirement?
	No, 44 10/100/1000 ports shall be offered.
Technical rationale is flexibility.

	171
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 1, Annex II+III
Which of two options bellow is preferred for Version 2 Ethernet switch (DC):

- switch with 8 Ethernet 10/100 ports and one 10/100/1000 PoE input port (DC power supply)

- switch with 24 Ethernet 10/100 ports and two dual purpose ports (DC power supply)
	Offered switches must comply with requirements defined in the section 4: Ethernet switches. 

For additional clarifications, see answers under 133 and 153.

	172
	Regarding Article 12 of SPECIAL CONDITION for LOTS where the goods do not include the installation and commissioning (as LOT5), what shall the insurance cover?
	Please refer to article 12 of the General and Special conditions of contract. Delivery is included in all Lots. 

	173
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 5, Annex II+III
Regarding the Annex II and III (LOT 5) Specification 3 (Combiner), does the constant impedance combiner include DVB-T mask filters (critical or not critical mask)? That is, should the filters have 6 or 8 cavities?
	Filter shall comply with Critical mask filter requirements.

	174
	Period of implementation for some lots is divided into several stages. How this affects the financial side of the contact?  Whether the contracted amount will be divided according to periods of implementation and therefore the bank guarantees? 
	The payment schedule is not affected by these stages. There will be only three payments for the contracts as per article 26 of the General Conditions of contract.

	175
	Ref: Tender documents / Technical Specifications Lot 2, Annex II+III
In lot 2 technical specification under point 03 of general requirements  are accesories and additional material. it is also requested certificate of origin for this point?
	All equipment needs to respect the rule of origin. 

	176
	Please let us clarify whether it is in the case of a consortium all members need to prove the technical capacity (based on i.a. items 5 and 6 of the Tender Form for a Supply Contract)?
	The Technical capacity is considered for the consortium as a whole. Therefore not all consortium members need to prove their technical capacity. 

	177
	Our understanding is that countries covered by the IPA programme would be candidate countries to the UE ie: Croatia, The former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia, Turkey and potential candidate countries (Albania, Bosnia and Herzegovina , Kosovo Montenegro) based on Council Regulation (EC) No 1085/2006 of 17 July 2006 establishing an instrument for pre-accession assistance (IPA) which is referenced in the tender. 
See also http://ec.europa.eu/regional_policy/funds/ipa/index_en.htm
According to the tender, products must originate from these countries above+ all EU countries. 

We don’t understand under which criteria Israel, Algeria, Armenia, Azerbaijan, Belarus…. qualified as eligible IPA countries and if the products could originate from one of these countries. 

We don’t see where in the official documents on the EU official website where they are listed as IPA eligible countries except in the document you just sent. 

We are therefore not sure if Israel is indeed an eligible country of origin or not.

We would need additional clarification from your administrative to know if Israel is an eligible country of origin for products involved in this tender. 


	The eligible countries under the IPA programme have been already listed. We confirm that list already published. 
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